
D E VE L OPM E NT  PL AN  R E VI EW  BO AR D  
M I N U TE S 

January 10, 2013 at 8:30 A.M. 
245 EAST BONITA AVENUE 

CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL 
 
 
  PRESENT 
 

Emmett Badar, City Council 
Scott Dilley, Chamber of Commerce 
Ken Duran, Assistant City Manager 
Krishna Patel, Director of Public Works 
Jim Schoonover, Planning Commission 
Larry Stevens, Assistant City Manager of Community Development 
John Sorcinelli, Public Member at Large 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Jim Schoonover called the regular meeting of the Development Plan Review Board to order at 8:32 
a.m. so as to conduct regular business in the City Council Conference Room. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
MOTION:  Larry Stevens moved, seconded by Jim Schoonover to approve the December 13, 2012 
minutes.  Motion carried 5-0-1-1 (Badar absent, Duran abstain). 
 
Reasonable Accommodation Request 12-01 
 
Continued from the meeting of December 13, 2012.  A request for an accommodation from Zoning 
Code Section 18.156.100.B.4.b to store a non-motorized trailer on the front driveway of 633 North 
Billow Drive. 
 
APN:  8386-023-027 
 
Zone:  Single-Family-7500 (SF-7500) 
 
Joseph Abdella, applicant, was present. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated that the applicant requested a reasonable accommodation request 
(RAR) from Zoning Code Section 18.156.100.B.4.b requiring that recreational vehicles be located 
behind the main building line at a side or rear yard in SF-Residential Zones.  If granted, this would allow 
Mr. Abdella, due to his disability, to permanently park his 18-foot non-motorized trailer on the front 
driveway of his house.  On August 12, 2010, DPRB denied this request by the same homeowner.  It 
was determined that although there was documentation provided that supports the applicant has a 
disability, it does not demonstrate that the accommodation of keeping a non-motorized vehicle is 
reasonable or necessary.   
 



DPRB Minutes  Page 2 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
The request was originally to be presented at the December 13, 2012 DPRB meeting; however, at the 
request of the property owner, the application was continued to today’s meeting.  The applicant 
submitted a response to Staff regarding the report written originally for December 13, 2012. 
 
Based on Mr. Abdella’s doctor’s note, he suffers from arthritis, injured shoulder, injured back, 
permanent pelvic damage and asthma.  Due to these medical conditions, he states it is difficult for him 
to retrieve his trailer from an off-site RV/non-motorized vehicle storage facility and wants to keep his 
trailer on-site because a neighbor has offered to help hook up the non-motorized vehicle when needed.  
The non-motorized vehicle is currently stored at an off-site facility.  The City has received four similar 
RAR applications.  Of those four applications, only one has been approved for permanent storage in 
the driveway due to the absolute need of using the non-motorized vehicle as a primary vehicle for the 
applicant’s need for the restroom.   
 
With a RAR application, one must show direct correlation between the request and the disability.  In Mr. 
Abdella’s case, the Staff cannot see one.  Staff understands that the applicant cannot hook-up the non-
motorized vehicle by himself, but in either case, at home or at the storage unit, he would always need 
additional help.  By having the non-motorized vehicle at his home, it only makes it convenient for him 
and his neighbor to save time for when Mr. Abdella is going to go camping/vacationing.  Also, the non-
motorized vehicle would block the garage if stored and is not complaint to the City Code.  Staff 
recommends denial of RAR 12-01. 
 
Mr. Badar asked Staff if within the doctor’s note, it indicated a detailed explanation how the applicant 
would directly need assistance hooking up the non-motorized vehicle.  He noted a future discussion 
needs to take place on receiving this type of structured note. 
 
Joseph Abdella, applicant, stated that he cannot hook the non-motorized vehicle up on his own, it is 
physically impossible,  and stated his neighbor assists him and cannot go with him to the storage yard 
to pick up every time.  He emphasized this is why he needs the non-motorized vehicle onsite.  He 
stated he used it to take his 16 year old for motor cross and to go camping.  
 
Mr. Schoonover asked if when he reaches his destination in the non-motorized vehicle, if it needs to be 
unhooked. 
 
Mr. Abdella responded no it stays hooked. 
 
Mr. Patel asked the applicant if he has considered a motorized vehicle. 
 
Mr. Abdella replied the non-motorized vehicle works better for him because it has a toy hauler in the 
back.  He noted that in 2010, the issue with the RAR was not having a handicap placard; he indicated 
he currently has one. 
 
Mr. Stevens asked if he has received citations for parking without a permit. 
 
Mr. Abdella replied he has received three citations.  He noted two were an error of the City.  The City 
sent one of the citations to a collection agency which reduced his credit score. 
 
Mr. Stevens asked what the error made on behalf of the City. 
 
Mr. Abdella responded one citation was issued for no permit when a permit was issued and it was 
proved, the second citation had the wrong address on the citation. 
 
Mr. Stevens asked if the trailer was the basis for all the citations. 



DPRB Minutes  Page 3 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
Mr. Abdella responded yes. 
 
Mr. Badar asked if the trailer is moved towards the wall, will it affect the neighbors view out their 
window. 
 
Mr. Abdella responded his neighbor was ok with where the non-motorized vehicle is parked. He added 
that in 2010, his neighbor accompanied him and stated there that he did not have a problem with the 
location. 
 
Mr. Badar stated that non-motorized vehicle parking was brought forth to City Council because 
neighbors of the community had objection to seeing motorhomes parked in front yards.  The issues 
included: blocking the view for neighbors and the appearance it has on the community. 
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the letter from the doctor is the same letter from the doctor in 2010.   
 
Mr. Badar asked if the decision from DPRB is appealable to City Council. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated that based on the RAR in the Code, the applicant has 20 days to 
appeal to City Council. 
 
Mr. Stevens posed the question of whether or not the disability is sufficient to justify allowing a change 
in existing regulations relative to storage and whether the regulation is unfair. He noted that if this was a 
daily need for use, then it would be easier to make a determination but since it is recreation based, it is 
more of a convenience than a necessity.   
 
MOTION:  Larry Stevens moved, second by Krishna Patel to deny the Reasonable Accommodation 
Request 12-01. 
 
Motion carried 6-0-0-1 (Badar Abstain) 
 
Mr. Stevens added that the applicant can appeal the decision at no cost, 20 days after the letter is sent, 
to City Council. 
 
Tree Removal Permit No. 12-57 
 
A request to remove 13 trees from a failing hillside at the rear of the property at 801 W. Cypress Way – 
Atria Rancho Park Senior Living Facility. 
 
APN:  8426-031-054 
 
Zone: Public/Semi-Public (PS) 
 
Tom Flitsch, applicant, was present.  
 
Senior Planner Espinoza stated that the subject site is on a hillside that extends down to an unnamed 
blueline stream that is tributary to Walnut Creek.  Over the past years, the hillside has been slowly 
eroding due to a change in the stream pattern.  The applicant would like to repair the failing slope as 
the edge of the slope is increasingly approaching their parking lot.  In order to repair the slope and 
establish the new slope at a 2:1, 13 trees will need to be removed in as part of the grading plan.  All 13 
trees may not be required to be removed.  The applicant will try to save as many of the trees as 
possible. 
 



DPRB Minutes  Page 4 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
The applicant did not submit a tree replacement plan at this time, Staff has conditioned that a tree 
replacement be submitted at a 2:1 replacement.  The final number shall be determined once grading 
has commenced.  Staff recommends approval.   
 
Mr. Duran asked if the replacement trees will be planted at the locations where the area was disturbed. 
 
Senior Planner Espinoza responded they will be planted where the grading occurs. 
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the health rating chart indicates 2 to 5.  He asked if the scale used to reach the 
determination of how healthy they are 1 to 5 or 1 to 10. 
 
Senior Planner Espinoza responded the scale is 1 to 5. 
 
Mr. Stevens asked if the trees were planted with original development of project. 
 
Senior Planner Espinoza responded that some appear planted, such as the trees beyond the fence.  
Staff recommends a 2:1 ratio for replacement. 
 
Mr. Stevens asked if it will require Fish and Game approval. 
 
Senior Planner Espinoza responded yes. 
 
Mr. Stevens asked if it is an irrigated slope area. 
 
Senior Planner Espinoza responded it is temporary irrigation. 
 
Mr. Stevens stated that since the slope has to be repaired, the trees will have to be removed.  Staff just 
needs to figure out a replacement plan. 
 
Tom Flitsch, applicant, commented that he appreciates Staff’s help and noted that they have been 
working with Fish and Game for three years.  He noted that Fish and Game did not indicate that the 
trees are not an issue but nesting season needs to be avoided.  A Biological study was conducted and 
there were no endangered species.   
 
MOTION:  Larry Stevens moved, second by Ken Duran to approve with standard conditions.   
 
Motion carried 7-0 
 
Mr. Stevens suggested flexibility with the replacement tree value and added that if things get more 
difficult, then there is room for discretion with the replacement number.  They are currently looking at 26 
replacement trees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DPRB Minutes  Page 5 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
Precise Plan No. 12-03 
 
Continued from the meeting of December 20, 2012.  A request to approve conceptual grading plans 
for Tentative Tract Map 70583 (Brasada). 
 
Zone:  Specific Plan No. 25 
 
Laura S Montenegro, resident of 2759 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Marie H Padilla, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Gabriel Ramirez, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Kim Scott, developer, was present. 
Frances and Eric R Stepp-Bolling, residents of 1411 Red Bluff Ct, were present. 
Stan Stringfellow, applicant, was present. 
 
Assistant City Manager Larry Stevens stated that the grading and tree removal were discussed in 
length at the last meeting because they are directly related to each other.  The red typing in the staff 
reports reflects revisions since the December 20, 2012 meeting. Staff has been working with the City 
Engineer and the applicant discussed the five areas of contour grading and trying to improve the plan.  
The Board is all in agreement for the use of contour grading, so the applicant has provided the latest 
version with contour grading.     
 
Part of the discussion included soil nail walls.  Staff thought all the walls were MSE retaining walls; 
however, some will be soil nail walls.  These types of walls are viewed as less impactful on some uphill 
cuts.  This may be acceptable but should be reviewed in plan check by the City Engineer who has the 
final authority.   
 
Also discussed was the proximity of the detention basin berm to the rear of the property lines of 
properties on Dalepark.  The shifting of the detention basin southerly to lower its height brings it closer 
to the rear of the Dalepark developed properties.  This places the toe of a 20 ft. high berm within 13-15 
ft. of the rear property lines of Dalepark properties.  The previous plan had a higher berm but was 150-
200 ft. further north.  The visual impacts are different and Staff and the City Engineer recommend 
increasing the distance of the toe of this slope to 25 ft.  The applicant would prefer to retain the existing 
design for the berm and maintain setbacks as shown on plans because: the setback is consistent with 
the minimum grading requirements in the code; the toe of the slope is 16-18 ft. from the property lines 
with a 10 ft. setback for a trail or access or landscaping; there is a 3 ft. setback for an interceptor ditch 
that runs along the edge of 10 ft. setback; and, there is a 3-5 ft. between the ditch and the toe of the 
slope.  The applicant also noted it is not feasible to push the basin further to the north.  They added it 
would: reduce the volume capacity of the basin which affects hydrology throughout the watershed, 
increase the environmental impact and alter the size and design of debris basins.  The applicant 
emphasized that the design height only affects 4 or 5 Dalepark residents.  This was discussed with the 
City Engineer whom agreed the changes suggested by Staff are feasible.  He stated that it is up to the 
Board whether they want to support the applicant’s request to maintain the existing plan or to make a 
change.   
 
He noted that per the request of the DPRB, the applicants hosted a community meeting with the 
Dalepark residents on January 3, 2013.  He noted that two letters have been submitted by two 
attendees. Five or six residents were in attendance and their concerns are incorporated into the staff 
report. Their concerns included: desire for a traffic signal at Cataract and Foothill; desire for rear yard 
access and trail along rear of residences on north side of Dalepark including the ability to connect to 
future trails to the east; a loop trail along the easterly side of the proposed basin; preference for 
landscaping including trees on the berm which should be pushed northerly as possible; and, concern 
that the design could accommodate all of the drainage needs of the area.  He added that the 



DPRB Minutes  Page 6 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
landscaping on the berm would be sent to LA County to address.  He noted that the ownership and 
maintenance of the access trail still needs to be determined. 
 
Mr. Patel asked if the applicants provided a visual representation for the Dalepark residents illustrating 
the berm and setbacks when first submitted and what is currently being proposed. 
 
Mr. Stevens replied no.  He stated that they showed the plans that were reviewed by DPRB, but there 
were cross sections that depicted the relationship between the old berm and new berm.  The more east 
on Dalepark the berm is the less impact of the height.  The impact will affect 5-6 homes on the west 
portions of Dalepark.  He added that the proposal generally meets county standards. 
 
Mr. Duran asked if there is fencing proposed by the berm and setback area.  
 
Mr. Patel responded fencing will be required by the Flood Control District.  
 
Dave Gilbertson, RKA/City Engineer, stated they may want to build near the boundary lines if the 
existing fence is already there. 
 
Mr. Duran asked about a secondary fence.  
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the details of landscaping and fencing will need to go through all the agencies.  
He added that Staff still supports a minimum setback to the toe of 25 ft. landscaping.   
 
Kim Scott, developer, stated that he was not in attendance for the community meeting.  He added that 
he met with LA County Flood District who indicated they wanted a fence at the toe of the berm.  The 
deciding factor of who maintains the landscaping of the berm is still being discussed.  He noted that the 
fence could be at the property line.   
 
Mr. Stevens confirmed that a discussion with County needs to take place in regards to landscaping on 
the face of the berm.   
 
Mr. Scott commented that they have exhausted their ability to work with the County and if the City can 
talk to them.   
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the County would want the City to create a maintenance agreement.  
 
Mr. Scott indicated he did not want vehicles on the pavement/trails area. 
 
Laura Montenegro, resident of 2759 W Dalepark Dr., asked how Edison would reach the power lines 
behind the property if vehicles are not going to be allowed on pavement. 
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the residents would like to have limited access for the purpose of the 
Equestrian trail. 
 
Ms. Montenegro stated she does not mind the improvement; however, asked if there is anywhere in 
San Dimas where a berm is not an eyesore.  She asked if instead of building up, the applicant can build 
down.  
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the idea is to hold water and release the quantities to the downstream pipes.  
He noted that it is not intended to hold for long periods of time. 
 
Ms. Montenegro asked if it could drain down to the sewer systems.  



DPRB Minutes  Page 7 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
Mr. Patel responded no and added there needs to be separate systems. 
 
Gabriel Ramirez, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., stated that he has not been presented of a visual 
representation of the aesthetic impacts.   
 
Mr. Gilbertson stated that the cross sections in red represent what was originally approved.    He noted 
that the cross sections show the berm originally being 70 ft. and currently it is 40-50 ft. lower and further 
back. 
 
Mr. Stringfellow stated that in the larger perspective, the lower berm only affects four to five residents. 
 
Mr. Ramirez stated that on behalf of himself and the residents, they are requesting to see a display of 
the visual impact this will have.  
 
Mr. Stringfellow stated that at the meeting, a line of sight analysis was shown with cross sections 
outlines.  
 
Mr. Sorcinelli commented that it is helpful to show full dimensions of the residential lots, such as a 
street view.  
 
Mr. Patel suggested doing a profile of what was approved and what is being proposed.  
 
Mr. Stringfellow stated that the new proposal has significant reduced impacts of residents on Dalepark 
Dr.  He noted that this will affect the residents at the west side more. 
 
Frances Stepp-Bolling, resident of 1411 Red Bluff Ct, stated that the project was approved with a large 
wall and was changed so that they do not have responsibility and maintenance can be done with the 
County versus from the Developer. 
 
Mr. Stevens stated that basins are expensive to maintain.  The conditions of approval have been 
designed in a way so that County will accept for maintenance. 
 
Mrs. Frances Stepp-Bolling asked what was happening with the proposed trail at the rear of the 
properties and emphasized when the home was purchased, it was stated there would be a trail in the 
future.   
 
Mr. Stringfellow replied when the tentative map was approved, there was no trail nor were there any 
proposals.  He stated that he is willing to put a trail but asked who will maintain it.  He stated that they 
will create exhibits for the neighbors to review. 
 
Mr. Duran stated that he is not successfully getting landscaping on the berm or near that section. 
 
Mr. Sorcinelli stated that instead of 25 ft. recommended he could support 18 ft. 
 
Mr. Stevens stated he would like the applicant to do an analysis of the view impact then go to planning 
Commission. 
 
MOTION – See motion under Tree Removal No. 12-48 section. 
 
 
 
 



DPRB Minutes  Page 8 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
Tree Removal Permit No. 12-48 
 
Continued from the meeting of December 20, 2012.  A request to remove 468 trees in conjunction 
with Tentative Tract Map 70583 (Brasada) in Specific Plan No. 25 (Northern Foothills). 
 
Zone: Specific Plan No. 25 
 
Laura S Montenegro, resident of 2759 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Marie H Padilla, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Gabriel Ramirez, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Kim Scott, developer, was present. 
Frances and Eric R Stepp-Bolling, residents of 1411 Red Bluff Ct, were present. 
Stan Stringfellow, applicant, was present 
 
Mr. Stevens clarified that at the last meeting it was stated that the property has around 3,900 trees on 
the property; however, the applicant has clarified it is actually 4,900 trees.  He noted that all the trees to 
be removed are within the grading footprint.  He noted that there is an increase in number of trees to be 
removed from 430 to 468 and added that the increase is not substantial.   
 
The other issue was allowing replacement trees in future landscaped front setback areas.  The total 
requirement of replacement trees are 938 at a 2:1 ratio.  If the requested portion of replacement is 
allowed in the front yard areas that would total 183 trees (or 366 if given “double” credit).  At the last 
meeting, the consensus was to allow up to three front yard trees to be counted as mitigation.   
 
There was also a discussion with replacement trees in the front yard areas to be counted as two trees.  
The mitigation measures specify a minimum 15-gallon tree.  The trees being removed have substantial 
size with about 20% having trunk diameters greater than 40” including multi-trunk trees.  It seems 
inappropriate to suggest that 100% of the replacement should be allowed at a 15-gallon size so double-
counting larger trees, the DPRB consensus was to allow box trees to count as two trees for 
replacement purposes. 
 
He discussed the issue of extraordinary credit for relocated trees and added it is expensive to relocate 
trees and the chances of survival are affected by numerous variables.  The proposal does not include 
any detail concerning the number, type, size or condition of any relocated trees.  Without detail, it 
seems premature to consider a 12:1 to 18:1 ratio at this time. The applicant submitted a memo dated 
January 14, 2013 further explaining the relocation tree credit.  The applicant is looking for the Board to 
give Staff authority to determine a fair replacement to offset any relocated trees.  Staff believes there is 
not enough information to justify the ratio and requests they submit more detail and a program for 
relocation. 
 
Mrs. Frances Stepp-Bolling reiterated her interest in a 10 ft. horse trail that loops along the easterly side 
of the proposed basin.  The property is directly on the berm and added she is not interested in what 
view is lost or blocked.   
 
Mr. Ramirez passed out a petition signed by the residents on Dalepark who are concerned with 
installing a traffic signal at Cataract and Foothill.  He referenced a letter wrote that was submitted to the 
Board yesterday which explained the increase of traffic and downhill speed concern.  He noted that the 
resident have yet to review a rendering of how the proposals will impact their neighborhood.  He also 
questioned the height of the berms and requested a stop sign installation.   
 
Marie H Padilla, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., emotionally agreed that a traffic signal or stop sign 
should be installed due to the danger of high speed drivers. 



DPRB Minutes  Page 9 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
Mr. Stevens indicated the traffic volume was studied; however, there was not enough support to require 
a traffic signal for this current project.  He noted that a traffic study was conducted in Glendora.  The 
ability to add a traffic signal is not at the discretion of the DPRB board, thus the letter submitted by the 
residents of Dalepark went to the City of Glendora’s Public Works Department and the City of San 
Dimas Public Works Department.  He noted that there needs to be a legal nexus based on the 
development and added it would need to be reviewed by the Traffic Safety Committee from the Public 
Works Department.  He stated that a stop sign can be added near Dalepark but will need to be run by 
the Traffic Safety Committee. 
 
Mr. Stevens stated that from the toe of the slope the berm is 44 ft.  It is a 2:1 slope and 23 ft., the 
distance has doubled.  There is a flat area at the rear of the property line; 18 ft. is needed for the V-
ditch.   He stated that at the top of the berm is 20 ft. wide and will be paved and used for access for 
maintenance.  Staff recommends 18 ft. to be increased to 25 ft. to push everything back and have a 
greater setback at the toe and added a little additional separation is better.   
 
Mr. Duran stated that he is not sure if the additional 7 ft. will make a difference. The question is where 
the County will put their fence and emphasized there is not enough information to require a trail or 
easement. 
 
Mr. Patel stated the applicant or Staff has to push the County for landscaping on the berm.  If there are 
trees planted, you will not see the berms.  
 
Mr. Duran asked if trees are required to be planted at the toe of the slope.  
 
Mr. Gilbertson commented that 7 ft. is requested for additional landscape.   
 
Mr. Sorcinelli stated that the County is in charge of everything inside the fence.  He asked if the 7 ft.  
buys both the trail and landscaping.  
 
Mr. Scott responded that it buys the landscaping and V-ditch but if decreased to 6 ft. there will be no 
vehicular access. 
 
Mr. Badar asked if Dalepark prefers equestrian access.  
 
Mr. Stevens responded yes.  
 
Mrs. Frances Stepp-Bolling stated that they do not want the access to be for trailers, cars, RV’s, etc.  It 
is preferred to have only access for pedestrians, horses and maintenance vehicle.   
 
Mr. Gilbertson stated that the application proposed a 3 ft. ditch from the toe of the slope and if moved to 
the toe, you will get 15 ft.  He noted that 10 ft. will be for trail and 5 ft. for landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stevens recommended pushing the V-ditch to the toe of the slope.  He asked if the Board had a 
position on the City trail if it is to be dedicated to City or maintained by developer.  
 
Mr. Patel recommended that it be privately maintained.   
 
Mr. Stevens stated that all parties need to accept the easement at the rear of the property.  
 
Mr. Duran commented the party responsible should be the HOA. 
 



DPRB Minutes  Page 10 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
Mr. Sorcinelli commented that the trail would be useable and people could have access from their 
property, keeping in mind there is legal documentation giving them that right.  
 
Mr. Stevens stated that based on the intended use, it is better that it is public vs. private.  He discussed 
the trails a bit and noted that it needs to be decided if owned by the City or County.  
 
Mr. Duran stated that the alternatives have been proposed but additional information is needed to 
determine if it is accessible for the public then this can be moved forward. 
 
Mr. Sorcinelli commented that the discussion was helpful; however, would still like to see the changes 
depicted in a rendering and should be pending until that additional information is received.   
 
MOTION for Precise Plan 12-03:  Krishna Patel moved, second by Ken Duran recommend approval to 
the Planning Commission, the grading plan with conditions of approval, deleting Condition No. 9E, 
insertion of the language to adjust location of interceptor drain to the tow of the slope, require a trail 
approximately 10 ft.,  with appropriate landscaping, Staff will contact County to maximize opportunity to 
landscaping of the berm that are visible to residents, resolve maintenance issues and leave open 
whether a trail is to be maintained by the City or HOA. 
 
Motion carried 6-0-0-1 (Stevens Abstain) 
 
MOTION for Tree Removal 12-48:  Ken Duran moved, second by Scott Dilley to approve this item to 
move forward to Planning Commission. 
 
Motion carried 6-0-0-1 (Stevens Abstain) 
 
Precise Plan No. 12-04 
 
Continued from the meeting of December 20, 2012.  A request to approve conceptual landscape 
plans for Tentative Map 70583 (Brasada). 
 
Zone: Specific Plan No. 25 
 
Laura S Montenegro, resident of 2759 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Marie H Padilla, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Gabriel Ramirez, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Kim Scott, developer, was present. 
Frances and Eric R Stepp-Bolling, residents of 1411 Red Bluff Ct, were present. 
Stan Stringfellow, applicant, was present 
 
Mr. Stevens stated that there are several issues in each of the following items.  He noted that he is 
trying to avoid each house going through the Precise Plan process.  He noted that if a future house is 
proposed in this vicinity, it would need to be heard at DPRB and follow the guidelines.  He stated that 
the there is an issue with the tree height and views.  Staff has expressed concerned for future pruning 
of trees in order to preserve a view.  The applicant indicated that only 5 of the 22 tree species listed are 
expected to exceed 30 feet in height. He noted that existing trees should be guaranteed preservation 
regardless of height and added that once trees are planted in common areas, they should be subject to 
normal maintenance and view preservation should not be considered. He noted that the plan called for 
the ability to modify trees and additional language to be added including limiting the species so they do 
not have to be topped.   
 



DPRB Minutes  Page 11 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
He discussed the issue of no build area markers.  He stated that the applicant has revised the lots 
eliminate the no-build areas from many of the lots.  The applicant stated they do not feel that the 
Tentative Tract Map condition is relevant and prefer to use the individual lot studies and guidelines 
rather than markers.  He indicated the preference for the use some type of markers to be placed in the 
no build areas around the lots and added this will make it difficult for a homeowner to encroach onto 
those areas. 
 
He discussed the issue of street light standards.  He stated that the streets are private; however, the 
City requires use of its own street lights if the City maintains the lights.  He questioned if the lights need 
to meet City standards, who will maintain the lights, the HOA, Edison or City.  He added that more of a 
discussion needs to occur.  
 
Mr. Badar asked who is responsible for making that decision. 
 
Mr. Stevens replied the applicant.  He indicated that where street lights will be added, the applicant 
would like to use the same lights as on the public portion of Cataract Ave.   
 
Mr. Sorcinelli asked if the City has a lighting standard or a green building code that needs to be 
followed.  
 
Mr. Stevens replied that an outside consultant will review the standards and can be adjusted.  He noted 
it would go through plan check.  He discussed the natural areas controlled by the HOA.  He noted that 
there are natural areas controlled by a HOA.  He noted that the guidelines do not talk about biological 
areas.  He noted that the areas are identified on the map.   
 
He also discussed issues for the standards for Equestrian lots and noted that it is not as clear as it 
should be including the fencing.  He stated that a condition can be added on the landscaping 
improvements and maintenance for those lots.   
 
Mr. Duran asked if there is an illustrated site plan where there is a designated no build zone.  
 
Mr. Stevens replied that on the plans there can be a radius done.  He stated that there can be portions 
of the guidelines that can become more user friendly, including the tree palette section.  He discussed 
the issue of retaining walls on slopes for infinity pools.  Staff’s concern is with the extent of the 
encroachment by infinity pools into slope areas.  He recommended it be further discussed for additional 
pool safety fencing requirements.  He recommended working with the applicant to clarify what can be 
done in the slope areas.  He noted that all lots cannot have infinity pools.   
 
Mr. Stringfellow stated that the infinity pools encroachment areas are in no build areas. 
 
Mr. Stevens pointed out other issues including: street furnishings, the relocation of the water tank and 
the new standards for a MS4 permit.  He stated that the street and traffic signs, the City should 
maintain the street name signs and follow MUTCD Standards for retro-reflectivity standards.  He noted 
that the water tank was previously proposed partially underground; however, it is currently proposed 
above ground. 
 
MOTION:  Jim Schoonover moved, second by Ken Duran to approve to move forward to the Planning 
Commission subject to comments made to modify, clarify and allow future applications to meet 
guidelines and go through the DPRB process and standard conditions. 
 
Motion carried 6-0-0-1 (Stevens Abstain) 
 



DPRB Minutes  Page 12 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
Precise Plan No. 12-05 
 
Continued from the meeting of December 20, 2012.  A request to approve conceptual fencing plans 
for Tentative Tract Map 70583 (Brasada). 
 
Zone: Specific Plan No. 25 
 
Laura S Montenegro, resident of 2759 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Marie H Padilla, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Gabriel Ramirez, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Kim Scott, developer, was present. 
Frances and Eric R Stepp-Bolling, residents of 1411 Red Bluff Ct, were present. 
Stan Stringfellow, applicant, was present 
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the Equestrian trail fencing proposed is concrete post and steel cable rail fence. 
The trail is subject to maintenance standards since it will be City maintained.  He added that the Board 
cannot approve the fence if it does not meet City standards because it can pose a liability.  He 
discussed Equestrian site fencing and noted no wood or vinyl fencing is permitted.   
 
Mr. Patel stated that the hillside grading will need to have a lot of guard rails and added there are State 
standards that need to be met. 
 
Mr. Stevens discussed swimming pools and stated that additional language on swimming pools fencing 
should be included in guidelines in more detail. 
 
MOTION:  Jim Schoonover moved, second by Ken Duran to approve to move forward to the Planning 
Commission subject to comments made to modify, clarify and allow future applications to meet 
guidelines and go through the DPRB process and standard conditions. 
 
Motion carried 6-0-0-1 (Stevens Abstain) 
 
Precise Plan No. 12-02 
 
Continued from the meeting of December 20, 2012.  A request to approve architectural guidelines 
for Tentative Tract Map 70583 (Brasada). 
 
Zone: Specific Plan No. 25 
 
Laura S Montenegro, resident of 2759 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Marie H Padilla, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Gabriel Ramirez, resident of 2724 W Dalepark Dr., was present. 
Kim Scott, developer, was present. 
Frances and Eric R Stepp-Bolling, residents of 1411 Red Bluff Ct, were present. 
Stan Stringfellow, applicant, was present 
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the guidelines must be consistent with the Tract Map and comply with 
requirements of Specific Plan No. 25. The applicant is requesting modification to allow a 950 sq. ft. two-
story element on all one-story lots.  He noted that the Zone does not allow this and the applicant has 
submitted a request to amend the code to the City Council, whom indicated they will look at and may 
change the Code.  He discussed the standards for secondary structures and noted that there is a 12 ft. 
height limit.  He stated that if the intention is to not allow such over-sized secondary buildings then the 
guidelines should explicitly state this intent. 



DPRB Minutes  Page 13 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
Mr. Stevens discussed the standards for solar requirements.  He noted that a minimum of 30% of the 
lot should have proper solar orientation.  Screening standards seem to discourage solar. 
 
Mr. Stringfellow stated that the only type of solar panels should be roof mounted and not on the slopes. 
 
Mr. Stevens discussed Fire Department standards and noted that if the Fire Code changes, the 
requirements for solar would also change.  He discussed that the fuel modification standards need to 
be verified.  He discussed the Green Building standards are evolving and need to be discussed more.  
He commented that the project guidelines should have a stronger introduction including more word 
definitions.  The organization of Equestrian discussion needs to be explained more clearly.  As far as 
the architectural styles, there needs to be more determinations of the styles.  He stated that the 
illustrations provided reference only the front elevation and asked that future plans include side and 
rear elevations.   
 
Mr. Patel stated that there are 61 lots that vary in size and will take 20 years or so to build.  He asked if 
a model requirement can be included with the submittal.  
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the City adopted a policy that requires a model to be submitted based on a 
certain square footage.  He stated that a computerized version versus a physical model can be taken.  
 
Mr. Scott stated that a separate discussion can happen and explained he was unaware of a model 
submittal requirement.  
 
Mr. Stevens stated an addition to the submittal will include an architectural model/3D rendering. 
 
Mr. Sorcinelli inquired about the number of architectural styles and asked how many are required.   
 
Mr. Stringfellow responded that the number proposed seemed sufficient because they wanted a variety.  
He noted that the submittal today is not proposing the actual homes and the illustrations are meant to 
represent details of the home and not the actual homes.  There are limitations on square footage on 
some of the homes.   
 
Mr. Duran recommended adding language to determine a certain number for the style of homes.  
 
Mr. Stevens added that language can be added to limit the variety.  
 
Mr. Scott stated that it is difficult to limit the designs when there will be various designs of the same 
type of style done by different companies.  Their interpretation can be slightly different from each other. 
 
Mr. Sorcinelli stated that there can be future issues with solar panels because the heights can reflect off 
the homes, mostly during the day.   
 
Mr. Stevens stated that the HOA can regulate and create more restrictive standards and enforce more 
than the City for solar panels. 
 
Emmett left meeting at 12:12 p.m. 
 
Mr. Stringfellow stated that those types of issues can be restricted in CC&R’s and stated that solar 
panels can be permitted on roofs but not hillside.  Also, it can be mentioned that recently new 
regulations have come into effect including regulating that a home cannot generate more power than 
the house needs.  He identified 30% of lots that were oriented for solar panels.   
 



DPRB Minutes  Page 14 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
MOTION:  Jim Schoonover moved, second by Ken Duran to approve to move forward to the Planning 
Commission.  Guidelines subject to comments made to modify, clarify and allow future applications to 
meet guidelines and go through the DPRB process and standard conditions. 
 
Motion carried 6-0-0-1 (Stevens Abstain) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 12:20 p.m. to the meeting of January 24, 
2013 at 8:30 a.m.  
 
 
 

 _______________________________ 
 Jim Schoonover, Chairman 
 San Dimas Development Plan Review Board 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jessica Mejia 
Development Plan Review Board 
Departmental Assistant 
 
 
Approved:  


